TOWN OF LUDLOW, VT
SELECT BOARD
REGULAR MEETING
MONDAY, JULY 1, 2024
6:00 PM

HEALD AUDITORIUM

Select Board Meeting- July 1, 2024 - Zoom Link
Meeting ID: 963 5236 4337
Passcode: 411479

One tap mobile
+13126266799,963523643374#,,,,*411479# US (Chicago)
+16469313860,963523643374#,,,,*411479# US

Dial by your location
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh2l2

AGENDA

1. Call to Order:

2. Consideration of any Changes, Additions or Removal to the Agenda:

3. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting(s):
a. June 3, 2024
b. June 17, 2024 Joint Board Meeting

4. Comments from Citizens:

5. Department Head Reports:
a. June 2024

6. Discussion Regarding the Class 4 Portion of Preedom Hill as it Pertains to Ownership/Use:



https://zoom.us/j/96352364337?pwd=N2k1RTIycVMyQXhjbThWcGJwWGJQQT09
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh2l2

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

ARPA Funding Allocation:
a. Black River Academy Museum Request
b. Okemo Valley Tv

Select Board to Consider Waving Penalty on Homestead Tax:

Select Board to Review and Consider setting the FY’25 Tax Rate:

Discussion of change of Procedure for Municipal Public Bodies Meetings:

Dam Rehab and Spillway Repair Project Update:

Tree Warden Update: Phil Carter

Merger and Option Tax Committee Appointments:

Resilience Initiative for Vermont Empowerment and Recovery (RIVER):

Process for Town Clerk Appointment (Change from Elected Position):

Municipal Manager Updates:

Other Business:

Possible Items for Next Meeting: (August 5, 2024)

Sign Warrant Orders:

Possible Executive Session/Personnel/Contracts/Legal Issues:

Adjourn:



PRELIMINARY MINUTES
TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

June 3, 2024

HEALD AUDITORIUM
6:00 P.M.

Meeting ID: 963 5236 4337
Passcode: 411479

One tap mobile
+13126266799, 963 5236 43374#,,,,*411479# US (Chicago)
+16469313860, 963 5236 43374#,,,,*411479# US

Dial by your location
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh212

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
Brett Sanderson, Chairman Justin Hyjek George Tucker, Jr.
Scott Baitz Neah Schmidt

STAFF PRESENT:

Brendan McNamara

OTHERS PRESENT:
Eric Alden Michael Normyle Jeff Warfle
Shannon Barton Bruce Schmidt Anna Webersen
Nick Gilberti Marissa Selig Steve Webersen
John Murphy

1. CALL TO ORDER

A.  Brett Sanderson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. He then led the meeting in the Pledge of
Allegiance.

2. CONSIDERATION OF ANY CHANGES. ADDITIONS OR REMOVALS TO THE AGENDA

A.  Brendan McNamara advised that Item #8 - CONSIDERATION OF ENCUMBERING SKATE PARK
FUNDS will be eliminated as the funds are in a separate account and not the General Fund so there is
no need to encumber them.

B.  Brendan McNamara advised that Item #9 — OVERVIEW OF RE-APPRAISAL PROCESS (RYAN
SILVESTRI OF NEW ENGLAND MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS WILL BE PRESENT FOR
DISCUSSION will be postponed to the July meeting as Ryan Silvestri is unable to attend tonight’s
meeting.



Board of Selectmen June 3, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 2 of §

3. APPROVE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

A. Brett Sanderson advised that the minutes to be approved are for the following meetings:

i.
ii.

May 6, 2024 — Regular Meeting
May 14, 2024 — Special Meeting

B. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Scott Baitz to approve the minutes as listed

above as presented. Motion passed unanimously.

4. COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS

A.  Eric Alden had a comment about Department Heads Reports — see Agenda Item #5

5. DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS

A.  Fire Department

1.

ii.

Eric Alden said that he noticed that it looks like the Fire Department responds to as many false
alarms as regular alarms and there are some regular offenders (one on Pleasant Street — every
month) He asked if there are any regulations, procedures, or charges for repeat false alarms.
Brett Sanderson said that yes, there is a procedure. First false alarms are free. Repeats within 6
months have fees associated with them depending on number of men and equipment sent. He
said that it may be time to revisit the fee schedule.

B. Town Clerk/Treasurer

1.

ii.

i,
iv.

vi.

Justin Hyjek said that we presently have $727,161.58 in delinquent taxes. He said that last year,
it was $607,640.69. He asked if there are more delinquencies or if the Grand List is higher.
Brendan McNamara said a combination. He added that the number has decreased since the
report was written. He added that there was a problem with the mail, some postmarked on time,
but not received until later.

Justin Hyjek asked if there is a system to pay online.

Brendan McNamara said they are looking into it.

Noah Schmidt said that he has spoken to Diane Knight and it would be a simpler process if the
Town and Village did merge.

Justin Hyjek noted that Ulla Cook also reported that 370 books (238,800 pages) have been
scanned and linked. He said that they are doing a great job.

6. LIOUOR CONTROL BOARD - Qutside Consumption Permit

A.  Brett Sanderson advised that Chief Billings has signed off on them. Brett Sanderson said they will
vote as listed below.

Applicant Business Name Class

Vermont Retaill Formerly Seven 11 Second Class Liquor
Second Class Tobacco

Depot Street Mafia & Game Birds Outside Consumption

Catering Corp

Moon Calhoun LLC Downtown Grocery First Class Restaurant/Bar License



Board of Selectmen June 3, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 8

B.
C.

Third Class Restaurant/Bar License

Blue Duck Deli First Class Restaurant/Bar License

Brendan McNamara said that Vermont Retail 1 was formerly 7/11, Green Apple.
MOTION by Scott Baitz and seconded Justin Hyjek to approve the liquor license renewals as

presented above. Motion passed unanimously

7. DISCUSSION REGARDING THE CLASS 4 PORTION OF PREEDOM HILL AS IT PERTAINS TO
OWNERSHIP/USE

A

Brendan McNamara said that he has had conversations with Steve Webersen and did a site visit. This
is about the portion of Preedom Hill Road that is Class 4, but the portions of the road that access to
that portion from either direction are Class 3. By State Statute, Class 4 roads are required to be open.
He said that the Webersens are concerned that portion of the road was always gated closed and is now
open. Brendan McNamara said that the gate was opened by community members and the Town did
not close the gate. He said that he has laid out options for the board, but that no decision or action
may be taken tonight as they need to follow the process.
Steve Webersen said he does not understand why the gate is open. There are wet parts on the road
and it is environmentally sensitive. It doesn’t go anywhere except to the VAST trails and no ATVs
are allowed on the VAST trails. He proposes to buy the road from the town and make it private
property. The other option is to not allow not allow ATVs on Class 4 roads. It used to be a grass
walking trail and he would mow and trim it. Now, it is a disaster.
Scott Baitz said that he understands Mr. Webersen’s concerns. He added that ATVs are breaking the
law getting there because ATVs are not allowed on Class 3 roads. That portion of the road is not 1/10
mile long.
Brendan McNamara listed the following options:
i. The Town may give up or abandon that portion of the road, but then there would be no
connection between north and south Preedom Hill. He is concerned that may not be allowed
ii. Adhere to State Statute. He said that some towns have enacted a Class 4 Road Policy that gives
the towns more oversight over Class 4 roads. The ordinance may be written, but not limited to
include: weight, speed, type of vehicles and seasonal restrictions. This would be the easier, most
seamless option and is not uncommon in other towns. He said the ordinances are mostly boiler
plate from VLTC. They can include as part of the ordinance that no gates are allowed.
iii. Scott Baitz asked if the ordinance would include all Class 4 roads, or can they “cherry pick” the
roads.
iv. Brendan McNamara said the ordinance can be limited to certain roads, based on the different
properties of the roads.
v. George Tucker, Jr. said the ordinance would give the town the most options.
vi. Noah Schmidt asked if there are any other Class 4 roads in Ludlow with similar circumstances.
vii. Brendan McNamara said not really. He added that there have been substantial ATV
conversations in Ludlow about ATVs. This is a landlocked piece of the road.
viii. Scott Baitz recalled that in 2022, this board made it clear that there are to be NO ATVs on Class
3 roads.
ix. Brendan McNamara said in order to start the process; he will put together a draft ordinance for
discussion at the July meeting.
x. Noah Schmidt agrees with an ordinance, but says no to giving up part of the road. He said that
the road has not been used since 1947 and now it is chained open.
xi. Anna Webersen said she is concerned that this is being tabled until the July meeting. She is
concerned that trailers and vehicles will be parking up there.



Board of Selectmen June 3, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 8

xii. Justin Hyjek said the board will move forward on this, but it may not be done tonight. We can’t
lock the gate. He suggested calling the police to open it.

xiii. Brendan McNamara said part of the discussion will be limiting access to certain times of the
year.

xiv. Michael Normyle asked if there is an enforcement policy in town to prohibit ATVs from Class 3
roads. He said that it is not uncommon for multiple 4-wheelers to be on Preedom Hill, going
very fast. He said that he called the police once, said it was not an emergency, and asked if there
was any way to enforce this — a ticket or citation.

xv. Scott Baitz asked Jeff Warfle (police department) if the police can blue light and catch them.

xvi. Jeff Warfle said chances of catching them are very slim and the state does not enforce the laws if
it goes to court.

xvii. Steve Webersen asked the board to remain open to giving up the road.

xviii. Noah Schmidt said that he bikes and cross-country skis on the road and is that allowed? He said

there are ways to put up a gate, but still allow access to the road.

xix. George Tucker, Jr. said that will be part of the discussion.

xx. Justin Hyjek asked about reclassifying the road.

xxi. Brendan McNamara said to re-classify that as a trail would take a lot, but is possible. He said
we will discuss this at the July meeting. We must follow the process with public hearings.

8. CONSIDERATION OF ENCUMBERING SKATE PARK FUNDS - ELIMINATED

9. OVERVIEW OF RE-APPRAISAL PROCESS (RYAN SILVESTRI OF NEW ENGLAND

MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS WILL BE PRESENT FOR DISCUSSION

A.

Postponed until July meeting

10. ARPA FUNDS ALLOCATION

A.

Cow

T Qm

Brendan McNamara advised the board has discussed this at a couple of meetings and received public
input. The town received $331,926.05 and his list will leave a balance of $131,926.05. Based on
those discussions, he put together a draft of potential uses. He said the funds must be allocated by the
end of 2024. The caveat is that there is a strong possibility that they will receive a $65,000 grant from
Vermont Community for the Dog Park and Little League

Scott Baitz said the committee has already raised $15,000.

Brendan McNamara said we are already moving on it.

Scott Baitz noted that the committee for the Mountain Bike trail system had asked for $50,000, but
Brendan McNamara’s list is only for $10,000. That seems low. He asked if Brendan McNamara has
any ideas for the balance.

Brendan McNamara said he does have some for-beautification projects, but the board can make any
changes if it is a use approved by ARPA guidelines.

George Tucker, Jr. said we can always re-allocate.

Brendan McNamara said if we allocate funds now, we can start to move forward with those projects.
Noah Schmidt said he would like to increase the Mountain bike number to $25,000. He said it
includes using a machine for the trail behind the high school. It also includes kiosks, tools, and
signage.

Justin Hyjek said asked if moving the Dog Park and Little League field to West Hill will satiate the
ARPA requirements.



Board of Selectmen
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

=R

zx

OO

H»

X g < C

June 3, 2024
Page 5 of 8

Brendan McNamara said if we will not be using FEMA assistance for them. We removed them from
the FEMA list and will use the grant. They will be done and paid for. We cannot get the grant if we
are using FEMA fund. We should hear soon about the grant.

Justin Hyjek said that originally, the bathroom at the Transfer station was over budget.

Brendan McNamara said it was never completed. The engineer is onsite and almost done. They will

be putting in a 1,000-gallon holding tank. This is long overdue. Originally, they were going to put

the bathroom across the street.

Justin Hyjek said he likes combining Dorsey and into one project — there’s lot of work to do there.
Brendan McNamara said that this is a good place to start, but Dorsey needs to be built on. There is a
lot going on there., There is a dilapidated blue screen by the soccer field, it needs to be replaced. He

suggested a 15-foot-high white screen.

Justin Hyjek asked if there are any other playgrounds in town other than Dorsey and the school.
Brendan McNamara said there was one at the Little League field.
Michael Normyle said the board is moving in the right direction, making Dorsey into a multi-purpose
facility. Give the Recreation department direction and Nick Miele should not be mowing and
trimming. Get Nerf balls. He said the soccer fields are only used 2 or 3 times. Get more activities.
Justin Hyjek said that Dorsey can be the main recreation hub for the community. It needs to be

repaved. He said that $65,000 is low.

George Tucker, Jr. said there is also the additional $30,000 from the Village portion.
Michael Normyle said that $100,000 for a state-of-the-art tennis facility. He suggested that the town
put $20,000 to $30,000 in for the next fiscal year’s budget and develop a plan for the next 2 fiscal

years after.

Noah Schmidt asked if there is a master plan for recreation.

Brendan McNamara said none that he is aware of.
Justin Hyjek said that the Recreation Department gets sabered every time the town is over budget.
Michael Normyle said that this board can help change that by educating people. Let us not put past
traditions guide us. The play space used to have recycled tires and wood chips. The chips would

blow into the tennis courts.

Marissa Selleck said there were 5-year plans for Recreation, but things come up that are out of our

control — for example — the flood in July. The basketball courts, tennis and pickle ball courts and Dog
Park were flooded. We are back to square one.

ARPA PROJECT TOWN REVISED | VILLAGE
B TOWN

Total Funds $331,926.05 $331,926.05 $232,936.04
Transfer Station Bath Room ($50,000.00) ($50,000.00)
Pleasant Street Ext. Culvert
Dog Park Relocation to West Hill ($45,000.00) ($45,000.00)
Jewell Brook Dam Level Alert System ($15,000.00) ($15,000.00) B
Mountain Bike Trail System ($10,000.00) ($25,000.00) N
EMS Building Rehab - .
Sidewalks Project - ($125,000.00) |
Water main Rehab o
Tennis Courts

| Heald Auditorium/Barton Conf. AV Upgrade ($15,000) ($15,000.00) ($10,000.00)
Dorsey Park Rehab ($65,000.00) ($65,000.00) ($30,000.00)
West Hill Ice Skating Rink B -
Okemo Access Road ($65,000.00) |

- |

Balance of Funds $131,926.05 $116,926.05 $2,936.04 |




Board of Selectmen June 3, 2024

Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 8

Z. George Tucker, Jr. said this is a long-term plan and we can allocate more later.

AA. MOTION by Noah Schmidt and seconded by George Tucker, Jr. to approve the allocation for
the ARPA funds as revised.

BB. Justin Hyjek said that Recreation often gets overlooked

CC. Noah Schmidt said he would like to spend more on Recreation.

DD. Scott Baitz asked what the trustees have said.

EE. Brendan McNamara said it is on tomorrow’s agenda.

FF. Michael Normyle said if the allocation is from ARPA, is it separate from the budget process. Ina
year, can you put this money into the town?

GG. George Tucker, Jr. said only if it is within the ARPA guidelines and used by 2026.

HH. Michael Normyle said if they did the tennis courts, they probably would not be complete until the fall
of 2025.

1L Justin Hyjek said that would satisfy the ARPA guidelines.

JJ.  Motion passed unanimously.

11. APPROVAL/ DISCUSSION OF RETIREMENT PLAN FOR NEW FIRE CHIEF

A

A.

B.
C.

Brendan McNamara advised that this is a clerical item. The new Fire Chief will receive health
insurance, benefits, and retirement benefits. He will be part of the EMS and they are VMERS-D.
(The rest of the town is VMERS-B.) This board will need to vote — on the minutes to approve this.
MOTION by George Tucker and seconded by Scott Baitz to approve the Fire Chief to be
included in VMERS-D benefit package. Justin Hyjek asked the true cost of the benefits.
Brendan McNamara said about $115,000.00

Motion passed unanimously.

12. REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF HIGHWAY SCREENED WINTER SAND BIDS

Al

mmoow

Brendan McNamara said that the bid opening was on May 29, 2024 and there were 2 bids. He said
that we requested the bidder provide quotes in cubic yards, both delivered and loaded. Bazin did not
provide loaded and we prefer to load it transport it ourselves. The recommendation is to award the
bid to Pike Industries at the price for loaded.

VENDOR BID o
Bazin Brothers Trucking, Inc. Delivered = $31.80/ CY
Pike Industries Delivered = $24.69/CY Loaded = $12.37/CY

George Tucker, Jr. asked the number of cubic yards.

Brendan McNamara said he did not know.

Noah Schmidt asked if the bid was far off from last year.

Brendan McNamara said no. He said it works out cheaper for us to transport.

MOTION George Tucker. Jr. and seconded by Noah Schmidt to accept the bid from Pike for

screened sand, at the price of $12.37 per CY, loaded. Motion passed unanimously,




Board of Selectmen June 3, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 8

13. MUNICIPAL MANAGER UPDATES

A.  Joint Select Board and Village Trustees’ Meeting
i. Brendan McNamara said that he will publicize a joint meeting of the Select Board and Trustees
on June 17, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. This will be to start discussions on the Local Options Tax and
merger of the Town and Village

B.  Timber Inn
i. Brendan McNamara said that asbestos was found in 2 bathrooms and they are waiting on the
abatement before continuing. This should be done within the next week. The state has given us
a 30-day extension - it was supposed be done by June 10", now 30 days later.

C. Town Adjustment Funds
i. Brendan McNamara said that town will be receiving about $825,000 for operating. FEMA
project money should be received within the next 3 to 4 weeks.

D. Fire Chief Peter Kolenda Retirement
i. Brendan McNamara said that there will gathering on June 27" from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. at
Post 36 of the American Legion. The formal retirement ceremony will be held on June 30
Information will be publicized.

E. Memorial Day
i. Brendan McNamara said thanks to the American Legion, Buildings and Grounds and all who
helped make it a nice Memorial Day in town.

14. OTHER BUSINESS

A.  FEMA Readjusting Flood Plain. Flood Way and Base Flood Elevation
i. George Tucker, Jr. said that an email was received from FEMA regarding changing the Flood
Plain and Flood Way maps as well as the Base Flood Elevations requirements. There will be a
30-day comment period for boards to respond. The response time started on May 30%.
il. Brendan McNamara said he will forward the information to board members.

B. Code Red Alert Svstem
i. Eric Alden said that CODE RED municipal alert system is not working.
ii. Brendan McNamara said there are technical issues and he will make a follow-up call tomorrow.
When you go to log in and create an account, - it SPINS. If we are using the ALERT system,
that will send out an alert. He will have an update this week. He and Dave VanGuilder will be
doing an interview with Okemo Valley TV and there will be a video on using the system.

C. Marquee for Those Who Served and Paid the Ultimate Price
1. Eric Alden said that at one time, there was a marquee at the mill with a list of those who served
in the military and paid the ultimate price. It has disappeared and he suggested having a
monument at Veteran s’ Park.
ii. Bruce Schmidt said there is one downstairs at town hall.

15. POSSIBLE AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING (JULY 1. 2024)




Board of Selectmen June 3, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 8

A.  Brett Sanderson said the next meeting would be July 1, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. and on the agenda:
i. Ryan Silvestri and NEMC Reappraisal Process
ii. Noah Schmidt suggested discussion about dam status
iii. Class 4 Roads.
16. SIGN WARRANT ORDERS

A.  Brett Sanderson said that warrant orders have been signed.

17. POSSIBLE EXECUTIVE SESSION/PERSONNEL/CONTRACTS/LEGAL ISSUES

A, Brendan McNamara said that an Executive Session is needed to discuss:
i. Possible Annual Pay Raises
ii. Municipal Manager Annual Evaluation

B. MOTION by George Tucker. Jr. and seconded by Scott Baitz to enter Executive Session to
discuss Personnel/Contracts. Motion passed unanimously.

C. Board entered Executive Session at 7:11 p.m.

D. No action taken.

E. MOTION by Justin Hyiek and seconded by George Tucker, Jr.to exit Executive. Motion
passed unanimously.

F. Board exited Executive Session at 7:48 p.m.

18. ADJOURN

A. MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Scott Baitz. To adjourn. Motion passed
unanimously.
B. Meeting adjourned at 7:49 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Lisha Klaiber

Brett Sanderson, Chairman Noah Schmidt
Scott Baitz - Geo—rge Tucker, Jr.

Justin Hyjek



II.

II1.

PRELIMINARY MINUTES

TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF SELECTMEN/TRUSTEES

SPECIAL JOINT MEETING

MONDAY, JUNE 17, 2024
6:00PM

HEALD AUDITORIUM

Select Board & Village Trustees Joint Special Meeting- Zoom Link

Meeting ID: 437 305 4865
Passcode: 255344

SELECT BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

Brett Sanderson
Noah Schmidt

TRUSTEES PRESENT:

Bob Brandt, Chairman

STAFF PRESENT:
Brendan McNamara

OTHERS PRESENT:

Eric Alden

Dean Alexander
Linda Alexander
Michelle Brandt
Aaron Galley
Andrea Goldman

Call to Order

1. Brett Sanderson called the meeting of the Select Board to order at 6:00. Bob Brandt called the
meeting of the Trustees open at 6:00 p.m. Brett Sanderson led with the Pledge of Allegiance

Scott Baitz Justin Hyjek
George Tucker, Jr.

Justin Hyjek Julie Nicoll
Ulla Cook
Lisa-Hamm Greenwalt Judy Lushinks
Heather Kelly Alice Nitka
Craig Kovalsky Rebecca Prasse
Carol Lighthall Jean Strong
Jay Lushinks Sherry Tucker

Consideration of any Changes, Additions or Removal to the Agenda.

1.  No changes were needed.

Discussion of the Village and Town Merger Process



Board of Selectmen and Trustees Joint Meeting June 17, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 5

Brendan McNamara said that this has been discussed by both boards and it is felt that merging the
Town and Village is the best option for the Municipality. There are pros and cons. We will be
holding multiple meetings to get public input, receive and answer questions. He said the Town of
Johnson recently looked into merging the town and village. He said that his personal opinion is that
this would be good for Ludlow. The redundancy at the administrative level is a burden. He thinks
that they should find an outside counsel to guide us through the charter process. This would not
necessarily be our current town counsel. He said there are 2 entities - Ludlow Electric and the
Water/Wastewater Department. The Electric Department would not need much in change. The
people who are not on the Water/Wastewater system would ask why pay for services they are not
receiving. In Cavendish, if you are not on the system, you don’t pay. This will have to go on the
ballot. The decision whether to put it on the ballots, lies with the Select Board and the Trustees.
Alice Nitka said she does have some concerns about the Sewer and Electric services. If the town
towns the sewer plant, will it be equal to get on the service. Who would be eligible. It could have
a massive impact on development. There was a lot of concern about Jackson Gore. Will individual
home owners who were told they could not get on the service, will they be allowed now. Would all
people who want to get on the sewer be able to. She said that years ago, people on South Hill had
CVPS as their electricity provider. Will they now be able to get Ludlow Electric. Another big
concern is too much power in too few hands.

George Tucker, Jr. said that a couple of years ago, the town received a grant to pave the access
road. The Village did not receive a grant. This year, again, the Village did not receive a grant. If
the town and village had merged, they would have received enough money to pave the entire road.
Michelle Brandt asked what the concerns for the village residents are.

Brendan McNamara said that the concerns are manageable. The Water/Wastewater costs for
people. At some point we will have to draw the line on additional services. We will reach
capacity. We do not have the capacity to pump from the lakes. The drawbacks are unknown. He
said that on the administrative side, bills and payroll must be split. He said that dealing with
FEMA was tough. Damages had to be reported separately, for the work in the town and work in
the village. If we merge, day to day operations, people would not know the difference. We had to
have 2 ARPA meetings. This will streamline operations. He said that he does not think that the
Town or Village would lose anything. Day to day services would be the same.

Andrea Goldman said that the entire town would benefit and it makes sense. Now, we must have
accounting and auditing for 2 entities. We must have a Town meeting and a Village meeting. We
must separate legal and staff between the town and village. Concerning too much power in too few
hands, she said that she agrees. She countered with - now there are 3 people controlling the
Village. What happens in the village impacts the entire town. We all benefit from the village. She
would rather see one large, single board and remove the power form just 3

Eric Alden said the issue of the Wastewater plant - they have plenty of volume and probably room
for growth. Regarding power, by State statute, these boards can increase the number of members.

Discussion Regarding Local Options Tax Structure and Process

1.

Brendan McNamara said that this issue can be polarizing. There are pros and cons and there are
reasons to explore. He said it is paramount to get public input. It will help offset the tax base. We
have some huge purchases coming up. It is up to these 2 boards to decide if this issue will go on
the ballot. We could end up with a local options tax in the Town and not the Village, in the Village
and not in the Town, in both or in neither. These boards will meet to discuss the benefits and
detriments. A municipality may choose to levy a local option tax on 1) meals and alcohol; 2)
rooms; and/or 3) any items subject to sales tax. The state takes 30% of the local options taxes that



Board of Selectmen and Trustees Joint Meeting June 17, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 5

oW

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
17.
18.
19.

20.
21.
22,
23.
24.

are collected by the towns. The money can be earmarked for specific projects. It is not wise to put
the funds into the general budget. We have some major infrastructure projects coming up. If we
do not have these funds available, the projects will be put into the general budget and we will have
to bond to pay for them. We could use funds from a Local Options tax to pay for them. We will
continue to meet and receive public input on this. Nothing is pushing this except for what is best
for the Town and Village.

Lisa Hamm-Greenwalt said that we are way over taxed in this state. The legislature just passed at

14% property tax increase today. It is nice that we can do a Local Options tax, but we should not
tax because we can. It feels like you are reaching into our pockets. What would we use the money
for. The timing for this is not good with the property tax increase.

Alice Nitka asked what is considered “Retail.” Benson’s, Aubuchon’s, clothing. lIs it limited.
Justin Hyjek said some towns have excluded certain items, such as propane, fuel oil and groceries.
Brendan McNamara said no vehicles. He said it is 1% in addition to the State 6% tax, unless the
town excludes something.

Justin Hyjek said in 2018 there was talk about taxing winter gear. Why would we do that when
people could go to Killington and get the same item without the tax.

Alice Nitka said that Aubuchon’s is struggling against the big box stores. We want to keep them in
town. Would it be worth it to lose them?

Brendan McNamara said it would be about $650,000 if we taxed every item that would be eligible.
Alice Nitka said Rooms/Meals - Ludlow is not in great shape due to the flood.

George Tucker, Jr. said the recent flood caused big expenses for the town. The dams need major
work - amounting to about $40,000,000 and we would be responsible for 25% of that. If we can’t
find the $11,000,000, we will have to add it to the budget and bond it. He said there are people
who don’t pay property taxes, this would be a way for them to help.

Andrea Goldman agreed that we are in dire need of money and it will be paid by the taxpayers.
She asked if the tax includes Air B&B, other Short-Term Rentals (STR) and what goes on on
Okemo and also the EPIC passes. We need an analysis of what the potential numbers would be for
Ludlow’s portion of an options tax. What would it do to our taxes? Our taxes should be
decreased. We need specific numbers.

Justin Hyjek said that if the STRs are paying taxes to the state, the state would know if they are
paying a local tax.

Noah Schmidt said that local taxes would apply to EPIC passes. He said he thinks that $650,000 is
low. :

Justin Hyjek said that he thinks they should form committees to explore merging the town and
village. He asked if both the town and village pass the local tax, does that mean there will be 2%
on the Village. And, if the Town passed the tax and the Village did not.

Brendan McNamara said no to the 2%. He said if the town did pass the tax and the Village did not,
the tax would apply to purchases outside of the Village.

Justin Hyjek said they should form a separate committee to explore the Local Options Tax.
Brendan McNamara said if the boards do want to form committees, he will serve on both.

Justin Hyjek said that drafting the charter will be tough.

Brendan McNamara said he has been doing research on which attorneys are experienced in drafting
charters.

Rebecca Prasse asked if they can apply a tax to Meals and Rooms, can Alcohol be separate.
Brendan McNamara said he thinks they are bundled.

Dean Alexander asked if this will be a town vote.

Brett Sanderson said it would be voted on by both the Town and Village.

Dean Alexander said it is important for people to know where the money would be used. When the
lottery was started, it was for education, but then they took it away and used it elsewhere. He
doesn’t want to say it is to offset property taxes, then down the road it is just a tax. He likes the



VL

Board of Selectmen and Trustees Joint Meeting June 17, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 5

25.

26.

217.

28.
29.
30.
31.

32.
33.

34.

idea of using it for the dams, but when the dams are done, the tax should go away. Pecople are
leaving this state because of the taxes. If passed, the use should be designated and when that is
done, the tax should go away.

Noah Schmidt said that Killington did have a Local Options tax and no longer does. A town can
discontinue the tax. We need to know where the money will go.

Carol Lighthall said she likes hearing public engagement and the Chamber will help get the word
out about meetings.

Eric Alden asked if we can get real numbers. He said that most of the commerce in Ludlow is for
the 4 months when the tourists are here. Can we really say that the tax is being paid by visitors.
What would the tourism portion of the $650,000 be? Vermont has a high-income tax and property
taxes. He said that the Town needs to do a better job getting word out about these meetings.
Justin Hyjek said the vote would be in November - state level.

Michelle Brandt asked if the tax were on Rooms and Meals, what about STRs?

Noah Schmidt said they do pay taxes.

Brendan McNamara said the $650,000 is just a number that was thrown out. If we form a
committee, they will get the actual numbers to give to people.

Eric Alden asked if the town is allowed to earmark specific uses for the tax.

Brendan McNamara said yes, we can designate specific uses. He said that some towns do use it to
offset the tax rate. This board has specific projects and when completed, can rescind the tax. We
will not put it toward the tax rate. He said if committees are formed, there should be at least 2
board members on each committee. He said he will do public outreach to find other members for
the committees. He asked Board members who would like to be on which committee:

Merger Committee Local Options Tax Committee
Justin Hyjek Julie Nicoll
Brett Sanderson George Tucker, Jr.

Noah Schmidt suggested they also reach out to Ludlow Electric and the Water Commissioners to
have a member on each committee.

Review and Adoption of Local Emergency Management Plan

L.

Brendan McNamara said that towns are required by the State to submit a Local Emergency
Management Plan. It really is not a plan, but a contact list for all people who would need to be
contacted in case of an emergency. Some changes have recently been made including Fire Chief
and Ludlow Electric contact.

MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Noah Schmidt to approve and adopt the
Local Emergency Management Plan as edited. Motion passed unanimously.

Select Board to Discuss New State Child Care Tax Contribution & Decide on Possible Payroll
Withholdings

Brendan McNamara said that this had not been sent to towns, but it takes effect July 1, 2024,  All
employers will pay a payroll tax of 0.44% on employee wages that are subject to Vermont income
tax withholding. The employers have the option to withhold up to % or 0.11% of the tax from the
employees’ paychecks. The full 0.44% would be $6,050.00 semiannuaily or after taking out the
0.11% from employees it would be $4,550.00 semiannually.



Board of Selectmen and Trustees Joint Meeting June 17, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 5

2. George Tucker, Jr. said that we have just given the employees raises and for this small amount, he
suggested that the town cover the entire 0.44%.
3. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Scott Baitz for the town to pay the entire

0.44% Child Care Taxes. Motion passed unanimously.

VII. Adjourn

1. MOTION bv Justin Hvjek and seconded by Scott Baitz to adjourn. Motion passed
unanimously.
2. Meeting adjourned at 6:53 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Lisha Klaiber

BOARD OF SELECTMEN:

Brett Sanderson, Chairman Noah Schmidt

Scott Baitz ) George Tucker, Jr.

Justin Hyjek

TRUSTEES:

Bob Brandt, Chairman Justin Hyjek

Julie Nicoll



8.

9.

Town of Ludlow
Department Head Reports

June 2024

. Ambulance — Stephanie Grover

Building & Grounds — Kevin MacPherson (Available at Meeting)

. Fire Department — Chief Peter Kolenda
. Highway — Ron Tarbell

. Listers — Jeannie Stasz

Parks & Recreation — Nick Miele
Planning/Zoning — Rosemary Goings (Available at Meeting)
Police — Chief Jeffrey Billings

Town Clerk/Treasurer — Ulla Cook

10.Transfer Station — Pattie Potter (Available at meeting)



Total Calls
June 2024: 52 Calis
Ambulance Calls

e Ludlow

« Cavendish

+  Proctorsville
« Plymouth

»  Mount Holly
»  Chester

»  Shrewsbury
« Andover

¢ Reading

e Weston

» Londonderry

« Springfield Hospital/ Springfield

»  Rutland Hospital
+  Mount Ascutney Hospital
»  Mutual Aid received
Transport
Springfield Hospital
Dartmouth
Landing Zone
Mouni Ascuiney
Rutland Hospital
No Transports/Stand by Coverage
Gill Home
Cheshire Medical Center
Home
Valley Regional Hospital

Ludlow Ambulance Service
June 1, 2024 — June 26, 2024

June 2024
26
4
2



LAS Updates:
e Qur first family day and safety fair was a huge success! The community seemed to love all aspects of the

event and we are so thankful for all of the focal businesses that was able to help out.
e We taught a CPR and First Aid course for Bright Futures in Proctorsville and certified 8 kids in CPR and
First Aid for a babysitting course.
¢ Had multiple meetings with the Chief Whelen to discuss working together and future goals and trainings
that we would like to do.
Continued discussions on the regional tech rescue team
e Ordered one new medication infusion pump. The current pumps will not be serviceable by the time our
next state inspection is due and both will have had to be replaced.
Stephanie Grover
EMS Chief
Ludlow Ambulance Service



Ludlow Fire Department

PO. Box 355, Ludlow, Vermont 05749
E-mail: ludlowfire@comecast.net

June 26, 2024

To: The board of Selectmen
From: Peter Kolenda, Fire Chief
RE: Monthly report for June

The department responded to12 calls for the month to date with a breakdown as follows:

6-1 Gasoline leak Commonwealth Ave.
6-2 Fire alarm Bowker Court

6-5 CO alarm — mutual aid Chester

6-10 CO alarm Trailside

6-14 CO alarm O’Conner Hill

6-15 Ambulance assist Pleasant St. Ex.
6-17 Possible structure fire Plymouth

6-22 Auto accident- Mutual aid Mount Holly

6-23 Wires Down Plumley Ave.

6-24 COalarm Town Hall

6-25 Auto accident Rt. 100 & 103 North
6-25 Fire alarm Jackson Gore Rd.

Training for the month was a relay pump operation at Trailside.

Engine 4 just returned from pump and chassis service and maintenance.

The aerial platform is in Albany for pump, chassis and ladder service as well as several maintenance
issues.

This will be my last monthly report as Chief. It has been a pleasure to serve the Ludlow Community
over the past 25 years. A special thank you for the firefighters and officers as well as the Board of
Selectmen and Municipal Managers for their support during my tenure.

Working with the new Chief Ben Whalen for the last week and a half has given me a positive outlook
for the department as we move forward.



Ludlow Fire Department

| P.O. Box 355, Ludlow, Vermont 05149
f E-mail: ludlowfire@comcast.net

FALSE ALARMS FOR JUNE 2024

DATE: TYPE: LOCATION: RESPONSE:

6-2 Cco 17 Bowker Court 4 men — no trucks
6-10 co Trailside — Unit 23-C 5 men — engine 3
6-14 co 740 O’Connor Hill Rd. 3 men —engine 3
6-24 Co Town Hall 37 Depot Street 3 men —engine 3

6-25 Fire Jackson Gore Inn—111Jackson Gore Rd. 6 Men — engine 3



LUDLOW HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT

Monthly Report - June
2024

e Transfer Station

(e}

O

Crushed & Load Dumpsters
= Demo
= cardboard

Turning compost

e Equipment Maintenance

o
o
o

Police Cruiser Maintenance
Ambulance Maintenance
Maintenance on highway trucks/ equipment

e Trees &Brush

o]

Ongoing Clean-up from Storm Damage

e Other/Miscellaneous

0

O 0000000 O0O0OO0OO0

FEMA documentation

Cold patching on going

Ditching cleaning Culverts East Hill
Grading Roads

Chloride Gravel Rds.

Apply Gravel/Surpac on Gravel Rds.
Work on cleaning up Pit (Flood debris)
Ditching/Cleanup West hill Dam
Painting Crosswalks/Stop bars
Replace Cross Culvert S. Hill & Love Joy brook Rd.
Assist with Water leak W. Hill

Road side mowing

Replace Cross Culvert E. Hill

Respectively submitted,

Ronald Tarbell

Highway Foreman



Directors Report
June 26, 2024

Ludlow Youth Baseball: Each of our teams finished out June with a handful of games while
working around numerous blackout dates with most teams finishing with a parent kid game. The
season was quite successful despite having one field for games and practices. Moving into the
summer we have a few kids playing on the Valley Youth All Star team and they will host a
tournament on July 12% through the 14" at Dorsey Park. This year Pullinen field is being shared
by our Ludlow/ Chester Babe Ruth team and the Post 36 Legion team. There were many field
renovations to accomplish such as moving a scoreboard, replacing lights and getting the infield
ready for the season. We also hosted a summer baseball camp at Pullinen Field that had 40
players interested in getting better. There were coaches, college players and even Rick Porcello
in attendance to help break the kids into small groups and help them get better at pitching,
infield, hitting and outfield. The feedback we received was awesome event though it was 90
degrees all week.

Summer Concert Series: The summer concert series kicks off on Sunday, June 30® at 6:30pm
with Gypsy Reel at Veteran’s Memorial Park. We have been actively promoting the concerts and
are ready for a full summer of Music.

Ludlow’s fireworks: The fireworks this year are planned for July 5% at the Okemo Base Area.
We will have food vendors and Rustie Bus will take center Stage at 7 pm and play up until the
dusk. This is always a fun event and brings a lot of people together.

Coed Softball: This year we have 10 teams participating in our Coed Softball league which is
the greatest number of teams we have had since I have been here. The games are played on
Monday and Wednesday nights at 6pm, 7:15pm and 8:30pm to ensure every team gets 9 games. |
have received great feed back from everyone and even a suggestion for next year to have burgers
and dogs available to really make it a fun, family environment.

Ludlow Family Fair and Safety Day: The first safety day in Ludlow was a huge success
bringing a lot of fun exhibits and bouncy houses for the kids. Stephanie and her staff did a
fantastic job setting up and bringing multiple organizations together. The recreation department
was there helping to server free snow cones and popcorn as well as monitor the bouncy houses.
A lot of people attending the event expressed how happy they were with the event and cannot
wait for next year.

Pickleball: Welcome to the fastest growing sport in Ludlow. This past month we tried to tape a
third court to meet the demand, however the tape came up so I had a few players paint the third
court.

Thanks,

Nick Miele, Director of Parks and Recreation



——

_,ﬁludlow Listers & Assessor’s Office

TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF LISTERS AND ASSESSOR
P.0.BOX 359
LUDLOW, VT. 05149
PHONE 802-228-7206
listers@ludlow.vt.us

LISTERS AND ASSESSOR’S OFFICE

JUNE 2024 MONTHLY REPORT

On June 12" and 13™ grievance hearings were held. We had only 4 appeals, all
4 were granted. On June 13" we sent out by certificate of mailing the results of
the appeals to the property owners. Deadline to appeal to the BCA is Thursday,
June 27", as of today no one has appeal to the BCA.

The Grand List was lodged on Tuesday, June 25, an increase of
$38,528,400.00, approximately a 2% increase from last year.

To date, 42 building permits have been issued, compared to 101 building
permit last year at this time.

Respectfully,

'y, 7 4 4
LA F 4 ,.). & AA A / -
=5 AL -
|



Jeffrey P. Billings Municipal Of
Chief of Police Ph. 802-228.4
P.O.Box B Fax 802-228.
Ludlow, VT 05149-0250 police@ludloy

Ludlow, Vermont

A Better Place To Live, Work & Play

TO: Board of Selectmen
From: Chief Billings

ACTIVITY LOG
JUNE 2024

INVESTIGATIONS:
Dead Body

Drug Overdose
Untimely

Sexual Assault
Fatal Accidents
Fights

Child Abuse
Burglaries
Larcenies
vandalism
Domestics
Accidents

Animal Complaints
Disorderly Conduct
Harassment
Drunkenness
Possession Stolen Property
Attempted Larceny

Juvenile Complaints
Trespassing

ITlegal Dumping

Found Missing Person

Threats

Stolen vehicle
ARRESTS/CITATIONS:

DWI

Voyeurism

Domestic Abuse

Unlawful Mischief
Disorderly Conduct

Simple Assault

Simple Assault Police officer
vViolation Release Conditions
Arrest on warrant
Drugs

DLS

RFHROOOOOOO, OOCOCOOCOONNAROROOMOONOO

Any Seasg'n Is The Right Season to Visit Ludlow
Proud Svonsor Of The Dare Program



MOTOR VEHICLE STOPS:
TICKETS ISSUED FOR:

Stop Sign

Speeding

No Registration
General Operation
Driving License Suspended
VNI

No Insurance

Seat Belts
Defective Equipment
Village Ordnance
Parkin? violations
Alcoho

Cell phone
Marijuana

VERBAL WARNINGS FOR:

Stop Sign

Speeding

No Registration
General Operation
Driving License Suspended
VNI

No Insurance

Seat Belts
Defective Equipment
DWI

Parking violations
Cell phone

ORHROOOOCOROORNOO

e
)

OOOﬁOOOOWN



MISC. COMPLAINTS:

Noise

Suspicious Circumstance
False Alarms

Assist VSP

Assist Courts

Assist DMV

Assist Ludlow Agency
Assist Other Agency
Business/House Checks
Motorist Assist

MV Disturbances

Civil Matters

General Services
Trash violation

=

Yo/

I—‘ﬁI—‘OI—\\IO\II—‘l—‘l—‘\IN-h

The Ludlow Police Department provided 2500 miles of routine patrol.

Foot patrol accounted for 6 hours.

Respecifully Submitted;

I I / ,
13, 22..

i} y P. Bi111n§§;

Chief of Police



To:  Select Board Members
From: UllaP. Cook, Clerk/Treasurer
Subject:  June
Date:  June 26, 2024

The following is a breakdown of the activity in the Town Clerk and Treasurers
office for the month of June:

Bank Statements for both Town and Village.

Recording in book 471. We now have 398 books or 238,800 pages scanned and
linked. This means we now have over 40 years in the computer. We are
encouraging the title searchers to use the computer versus the card file. We also
now have all the land record books available on line from the home page.
Property transfer tax returns are scanned from 1968 to present. Pam is now
working on putting the Lien Books and scanning into the NEMRC System.

Received 71 documents for recording during June which includes warranty deeds,
quit claim deeds, mortgages, mortgage discharges, bianchi, certificate of
occupancy, liens and miscellaneous permits. Also included in the documents for
recording are 13 property transfers totaling $2,199,010.00

N



06/26/24 Town of Ludlow General Ledger Page 1 of 2

11:27 am Current Yr Pd: 12 - Budget Status Report UCook
General Fund
Account Actual
Budget Actual % of Budget
GENERAL 29,062,955.23 28,528,520.98 98.16%
ADMINISTRATION 183,340.00 191,065.34 104.21%
BUILDING AND GROUNDS 16,700.00 11,771.00 70.49%
CEMETERY 40,925.00 16,992.50 41.52%
TOWN CLERK 95,870.00 62,906.34 65.62%
TOWN TREASURER 114,000.00 172,003.44 150.88%
INTEREST/DIVIDEND 42,691.00 122,918.17 287.93%
FIRE 3,000.00 25,407.60 846.92%
COMMUNITY CENTER 2,500.00 1,946.00 77.84%
MUNICIPAL TRANSIT 0.00 0.00 0.00%
High School Building 7,500.00 5,500.00 73.33%
HIGHWAY 146,250.00 154,637.83 105.74%
INSURANCE 10,939.00 10,303.22 94.19%
LISTERS 3,500.00 3,607.00 103.06%
PLANNING 26,800.00 55,053.17 205.42%
POLICE 56,899.00 39,735.57 69.84%
RECREATION 15,600.00 25,826.52 165.55%
FLOOD 0.00 2,825,511.78 100.00%
SOLID WASTE 187,750.00 139,464.05 74.28%
CAPITAL 469,100.00 378,285.00 80.64%
Total Revenues 30,486,319.23 32,771,455.51 107.50%
ADMINISTRATION 304,434.00 401,984.75 132.04%
BUILDING AND GROUNDS 207,570.00 262,663.81 126.54%
TOWN CLERK/TREASURER 247,505.00 250,631.25 101.26%
COMMUNITY CENTER OP 93,625.00 130,465.91 139.35%
PLANNING SERVICES 188,077.00 205,672.26 109.36%
LISTERS 78,435.00 68,204.12 86.96%
POLICE DEPARTMENT 1,228,280.00 1,254,750.70 102.16%
FIRE DEPARTMENT 167,970.00 169,124.63 100.69%
MUN. TRANSIT SYS 0.00 0.00 0.00%
HIGH SCHOOL BUILDING 95,161.00 78,284.72 82.27%
HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 1,128,910.00 1,009,966.60 89.46%
SOLID WASTE 270,800.00 321,184.60 118.61%
DISPOSAL 168,350.00 186,733.88 110.92%
CEMETERY DEPARTMENT 125,697.00 146,244.34 116.35%
RECREATION DEPARTMENT 194,300.00 217,096.56 111.73%
FLOOD 0.00 3,154,299.16 100.00%
INTER GOVERNMENTAL 163,000.00 163,737.63 100.45%
APPROPRIATIONS 173,587.00 137,926.61 79.46%
INSURANCE 202,769.00 214,510.00 105.79%
VOTED ARTICLES 491,835.00 394,335.00 80.18%
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS 23,570,378.62 23,570,378.62 100.00%
DEBT MANAGEMENT 354,609.00 330,757.24 93.27%
CAPITAL 439,600.00 528,326.99 120.18%
Total Expenditures 29,894,892.62 33,197,279.38 111.05%

Total General Fund

591,426.61

-425,823.87



06/26/24 Town of Ludlow General Ledger Page 2 of 2
11:27 am Current ¥Yr Pd: 12 - Budget Status Report UCook
General Fund

Account Actual
Budget Actual % of Budget

Total All Funds 591,426.61 -425,823.87



L A S A !
BLACK RIVER

June 6, 2024

To: Brendon McNamara
From: Black River Academy Museum (BRAM) Board of Trustees

Re: Round #2, ARPA Funds

The purpose of this letter is to provide you with a wish list of items BRAM
could benefit from receiving if we were fortunate to receive the ten
thousand dollars we requested for programming and preservation.

The wish list is as follows for programming and preservation:

1.
2.

3.

o s

o

Update computers and our copy machine.

Preserve circus posters and old maps of Ludlow. These items need to
be sent to Shelburne Museum in South Burlington for preservation.
Reproduce glass negatives from 1891-1920 into digital photos. These
negatives are pictures of Ludlow, and must be sent out to be
processed.

Table top display case(s).

To purchase an archival file system for newspapers to preserve them
for genealogy.

Purchase or create kiosks for genealogy research.

Produce themed artifact kits for schools to borrow and learn about
their heritage, and hands-on exhibits.

FOBox73 * Ludlow Vermonf 05149 + §02-238-50%0



8. Contract with an exterminator to preserve the artifacts within the
building.

9. Update and repair the brick walkway.

10. Pay Okemo sign shop for printing to create professional
advertisements for our events.

11. Purchase archival tissue paper to preserve our textile collection.

12. Purchase a sandwich board to advertise our events.

13. Hire landscapers to update and clean out and remove old dead
shrubs, trees, etc.

14. The roof was repaired last year, but currently has more leaks that
need addressing.

As you can see, we could benefit from more than our ten thousand dollar
request because maintaining the building, and its valuable, historic
contents is essential in preserving Ludlow’s cultural heritage.

The twenty-five thousand dollars allocated to the museum each year is
insufficient, but greatly appreciated. If more ARPA funds are available,

would you please consider increasing our request.

Thank you for considering our request. We greatly appreciate your time and
attention given to our letter.

We look forward tc hearing from you on July 2nd.

His’gop}):ally yours,

(Hviper Lo Birden

ébrgia‘:B'rehm, Director and Curator of BRAM



Okemo Valley TV
37C Main Street
Ludiow, Vt. 05149

OKEMO VALLEY TV (802) 228-8808 | okemovalley.tv

Town & Village of Ludlow
PO Box 307
Ludlow, VT 05149

June 26, 2024

Re: ARPA Fund Request for Low Power FM Radio

Brendan:

As you are aware, Okemo Valley TV has received a permit from the Federal Communications Commission
to construct a Low Power FM (LPFM) Non-Commercial Community Radio station. While we are still in the
beginning stages, I have been meeting with an advisory committee of interested community members,
who are putting together plans for bringing this to fruition and getting the station on the air. Not only will
the LPFM station be a great new addition for the community for news and entertainment, but it can also
serve the Town & Village by disseminating vital emergency alerts and information.

We have a temporary name — Black River Radio — which may very well become the official name. We also
have been provided with an FM frequency (104.7), and soon will be receiving the call letters as well (we
are applying for WLUD, since WBRR is not available). The plan is to “ramp up” the radio station, first as
an online streaming station, and then, once all of the pieces are in place, as the over-the-air LPFM
broadcast radio station.

Since Okemo Valley TV does not have the budget to fund the start-up costs of the radio station,
assistance and community support are being sought. Specifically, we would like to request funding for
the components that will serve the emergency alert needs. Towards this end, would the Town & Village
consider allocating $20,000 in ARPA funding?

The advisory committee met again last night to review the list of equipment and costs. This is how the
$20,000 would be used:

- $2,500 for Emergency Alert System (EAS)

- $6,000 for transmitter

- $3,000 for antenna

- $1,500 labor to install transmitter & antenna

- $1,500 desktop computer with automation software

- $2,000 laptop computer with audio mixing & editing software

- $3,500 miscellaneous audio hardware, processing equipment, + accessories

Please let me know if you have any questions and/or if there is any additional information that you may
need for the Seletboard & Trustees to consider this request.

Regards,

a
bt '0-'\_/‘\"- S .
| {
/
/

Patrick Cody, Executive Director

Okemo Valley TV | 37C Main St., Ludlow , VT 05149 | (802) 228-8808 | info@okemovalley.tv



TAX RATE CALCULATION TOWN FY25

Voted Budget
Articles

Voted Exemptions

Grand List

indicated Tax Rate
Last Year

Taxes Raised

Homestead Education Rate

Non Homestated

4,684,819.00

229,750.00

83,945.59

4,998,514.59

15,770,933.00

.3169
3229

4,997,808.67

To be determined
To be determined



MODEL RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR MUNICIPAL PUBLIC

BODIES

HOW TO CUSTOMIZE AND ADOPT THESE MODEL RULES OF PROCEDURE
CUSTOMIZE

While these model rules do not closely adhere to Robert’s Rules of Order, they do recognize its utility
by incorporating the more familiar and easier to follow elements that we believe best enable public
bodies to conduct their business in an orderly fashion. We've also built some flexibility into these rules
to allow members to make any type of motion (e.g., motion to amend, table, reconsider, object to
consideration of the question, etc.) they want so long as they’re aware of their consequences.

We invite public bodies to customize these rules to suit their community’s needs, being sure to give
careful consideration to each of its elements in light of their municipality’s resources and community’s
expectations. Opportunities for editing these rules are designated with [brackets] and/or “Optional”
italicized text. Public bodies must remove, replace, or accept the customizable language before
adopting the rules.

Please note, however, that not all sections are customizable. Some highlighted sections (e.g., Section
IIl. Agendas; Section Ill. Meetings; and Section VII. Minutes) mirror State law and are only included to
remind public bodies of their legal obligations and therefore must be left unchanged.

ADOPT

These rules are administrative in nature, rather than regulatory, which means they’re relatively simple
to adopt. Generally, all that is required for adoption is a majority vote by a public body at a duly
warned public meeting. The rules can take effect as soon as they're adopted, or at a later date as
specified by the body. Since the rules only apply to those bodies that adopt them, no other body is
precluded from adopting their own rules of procedure. Keep in mind that elected public bodies have
the independent authority to adopt their own rules of procedure, appointed ones may be directed to
adopt those rules favored by their governing authority.

HOW TO USE THESE MODEL RULES OF PROCEDURE

Rules of procedure can be challenged in court both “on their face” (i.e., as written) and “as applied”
(i.e., as implemented). While we’ve taken every effort to carefully craft these rules to avoid the former,
we cannot guarantee that result, and it is up to you to avoid the latter.

VLCT Model Rules of Procedure for Municipal Boards Page 1



Rules of procedure only work as well as they’re followed, which requires applying them fairly and
consistently without distinction between who the speaker is or what their position is and regardless
of whether they attend in-person or via remote means.

This responsibility largely falls on the shoulders of the presiding officer or “chair” of the public body
administering the rules. Presiding over a meeting involves a mix of judgement and assertiveness. Some
say that you either have it or you don’t; in reality, presiding and leading are very much learned skills
which are accessible to all. The Vermont Institute for Government’s publication, “Born To Chair: An
Introduction to the Science and Art of Chairing a Board Meeting” is great resource for new and
seasoned presiding officers alike to help hone those skills.

This modef has been developed for illustrative purposes only. VLCT makes no express or implied endorsement or
recommendation of any rules, nor does it make any express or implied guarantee of legal enforceability or legal
compliance, or that any rules of procedure are appropriate for any particular municipality. While every effort is
made to provide members with the most accurate information possible, these documents do not constitute legal
advice. Each municipality is advised to seek legal counsel to review any proposed rules of procedure before
adoption and/or use. VLCT PACIF members are advised to seek input from their municipality’s loss control
consultant regarding insurance considerations and risk avoidance.

For individual assistance, please contact the Municipal Assistance Center at vict.org/AskVLCT,
emailing info@vlct.org, or calling 1-800-649-7915.

Please copy below the dotted line and paste info a new document Commentea
"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" boutr where to break these into two docs was resolved.
Where was it ang want me to do it you?

[Name of Public Body] Rules of Procedure for Meetings

[Municipality Name]

PURPOSE. The [board, council, committee, commission, etc.] of [municipality] is required by law to \
conduct its meetings following the Vermont Open Meeting Law. 1 V.S.A. §§ 310-314. A “meeting” is

defined as a gathering of a quorum of the members of a public body for the purpose of discussing the

business of the public body or for the purpose of taking action.1 V.S.A. § 310(3)(A). Meetings of the

[board, council, committee, commission, etc.] of [municipality] must always be open to the public,

except as provided in 1 V.S.A. § 313 for executive session. The purpose of these meetings is to conduct

VLCT Model Rules of Procedure for Municipal Boards Page 2



the business of the public body efficiently and effectively, while still allowing a reasonable opportunity
for public comment.

APPLICATION. This policy setting forth rules of procedure applies to the [board, council, committee,
commission, etc.] of the {[municipality], referred to below as “the body.” These rules apply to all
regular, special, and emergency meetings of the body. These rules do not apply to municipal quasi-
judicial proceedings. The [board, council, committee, commission, etc.] of [municipality] adopts these
rules to further its significant interest in conducting its meetings in an efficient and orderly fashion. To
this end, the following rules are established for the conduct of all persons, including board members,
staff members, and members of the public attending the body’s meeting.

. ORGANIZATION.

1. The body must annually elect a chair and a vice-chair, who will serve until the body’s next annual
meeting, unless otherwise removed. Vacancies in the offices of chair or vice-chair will be filled by
majority vote of the body.

2. The body may vote to remove the chair or vice-chair at any time and elect a new chair or vice-chair
by [unanimous/two-thirds/majority] vote.

3. The chair of the body or, in the chair’s absence, the vice-chair will preside over all meetings (i.e.,
presiding officer). If both the chair and the vice-chair are absent, a member selected by the body
will act as presiding officer for that meeting.

4. A majority of the total membership of the body constitutes a quorum. If a quorum of the members
of the body is not present at a meeting, no meeting will take place.

5. No single member of the body has the authority to represent or act on behalf of the body unless
either by statute or by majority vote, the body has delegated such authority as recorded in its
meeting minutes.

6. - All members, including the chair and vice-chair of the body, are entitled to full participation in its
proceedings, including the right to attend, speak, make motions, and vote.

7. Meetings of the body may be recessed (i.e., a brief break), or adjourned (i.e., postponed) and
continued at a later date, time, and place certain. A motion stating the time and place that a
meeting is either recessed or adjourned to must be made in public before the meeting is recessed
or adjourned and such motion recorded in the meeting minutes.

8. These rules may be amended by [unanimous/two thirds/majority] vote of the body and must be
readopted annually.

Il. AGENDAS.

VLCT Model Rules of Procedure for Municipal Boards Page 3



Each regular and special meeting of the body must have an agenda with time allotted for each item
of business to be considered by the body. The [chair/municipal manager/municipal
administrator/municipal clerk/other] will create and manage the body’s agenda. Notwithstanding
the [chair’'s/municipal manager’s/municipal administrator’s/municipal clerk’s/other’s] authority
over the agenda, the body, in its discretion, may amend the final content of the agenda before or,
to some extent, during the body’s next meeting. Those who wish to add an item(s) to the meeting
agenda need to contact the [chair/municipal manager/municipal administrator/municipal
clerk/other] to request its inclusion on the agenda. All requests for additional agenda items must be
provided at least [at minimum 60/at most 72] hours in advance of a regular and [at minimum 36/at
most 48] hours in advance of a special meeting to be considered.

At least 48 hours prior to a regular meeting, and at least 24 hours prior to a special meeting, a
meeting agenda must be posted in or near the municipal office and at the following designated
public places in the municipality: [include the location of at least two public places in municipality].
[/F THE PUBLIC BODY/MUNICIPALITY HAS A DESIGNATED/MAINTAINED WEBSITE, INSERT THE
FOLLOWING: “At least 48 hours prior to a regular meeting, and at least 24 hours prior to a special
meeting, a meeting agenda must be posted on [identify the website and its URL].”] The agenda
must also be made available to any person who requests it prior to the meeting.

All business will be conducted in the same order as it appears on the noticed agenda, unless voted
otherwise, except that any addition to or deletion from the noticed agenda may be made as the
first act of business at the meeting. No additions to or deletions from the agenda will be considered
once the first act of business at the meeting has commenced. Any other adjustment to the noticed
agenda, for example, changing the order of business, or postponing or tabling actions, may be
made by [unanimous/two-thirds/majority] vote of the body.

No binding action can be taken on matters not appearing on the agenda, unless when necessary to
respond to an unforeseen occurrence or condition requiring immediate attention by the body. Nor
can the agenda item entitled “other business” be used for taking binding action.

I1l. MEETINGS.

Regular meetings will take place on [day and time, for example, the first and third Tuesday of the
month at 7 p.m.] at [include a location accessible to the public].

Special meetings must be publicly announced at least 24 hours in advance by giving notice to: all
members of the body, either orally or in writing, unless previously waived; an editor, publisher or
news director, or radio station serving the area; and any person who has requested notice of such
meetings. In addition, notices must be posted in the municipal clerk’s office and at the following
designated places in the municipality: [include the location of at least two public places in
municipality].

VLCT Model Rules of Procedure for Municipal Boards Page 4



Emergency meetings may be held without public announcement, without posting notice, and
without 24-hour notice to members, provided some public notice thereof is given as soon as
possible before any such meeting. Emergency meetings may be held only when necessary to
respond to an unforeseen occurrence or a condition requiring immediate attention by the body.

. A member of the body may attend a regular, special, or emergency meeting by electronic or other
means without being physically present at a designated meeting location, so long as the member
identifies themselves when the meeting is convened and is able to hear and be heard throughout
the meeting. Whenever one or more members attend a meeting electronically, voting by the body
that is not unanimous must be done by roll call. If a quorum or more of the body attend a meeting
without being physically present at a designated meeting location, the agenda for the meeting
must designate at least one physical location where a member of the public can attend and
participate in the meeting. At least one member of the body, or at least one staff or designee of the
body, must be physically present at each designated meeting location.

. There is no allowance for voting by proxy. A member must be either physically present or, if
applicable, present using electronic or other means in order to vote.

IV. MOTIONS AND VOTING.
. Any member of the body may make a motion.

. A member of the body may speak or make a motion [only after/without] being recognized by the
presiding officer.

Members of the body are not limited by the type of motions they may make (e.g., motion to
amend, table, reconsider, object to consideration of the question, etc.), though all members should
be aware of the consequences of the motion they make and/or approve.

Motions made by members of the body [do/do not] require a second to proceed with discussion
and/or action, if any.

. The maker of a motion has the right to speak first in debate once the motion has been [seconded],
restated by the presiding officer, and the member is recognized by the presiding officer.

Members must limit their comments and motions to the meeting agenda item under consideration.
. All motions must be phrased in the affirmative.
. All motions must be restated by the presiding officer prior to a vote.

Responses to voice votes, when provided, must be expressed as either “yes” or “no.” Members
may also abstain or recuse themselves from voting.

VLCT Model Rules of Procedure for Municipal Boards Page 5



10. All motions require the approval of the majority of the total membership of the body to pass,
unless the threshold has been increased by the body, or as otherwise modified by state law.

11. A member may change their vote up until such time as the vote is announced by the presiding
officer.

12. Any member of the body may request a roll call vote. Whenever one or more members attend a
meeting electronically, a roll call vote is required for votes that are not unanimous.

13. The presiding officer must announce the result of all votes and what action, if any, the body has
taken.

14. [OPTIONAL: The collective silent acquiescence of the body in response to a motion will signify its
unanimous consent.]

15. Motions to end or limit debate [will/will not] be entertained. [IF REQUIRED, INSERT THE
FOLLOWING: “A motion to end or limit debate may be made at any time after a member has been
recognized by the presiding officer. Motions to end or limit debate require a [two-thirds/majority]
vote of the total membership of the body.”]

16. No member can speak more than once on any agenda item or motion until every other member
choosing to speak thereon has been given the opportunity to do so.

17. A member of the body may call a point of order at any time, without being recognized, to bring
attention to a potential rule violation. A point of order does not require [a second or] a vote.

18. The presiding officer will rule on all points of order and state their justification.

19. Any member may appeal the presiding officer’s ruling on a point of order, without being
recognized. An appeal [does/does not] require a second. If appealed, the ruling of the presiding
officer may be overruled by a majority of the total membership of the body.

20. The failure of the body to strictly adheré to any provision of this section will not invalidate any
action taken, unless such action was taken by less than a majority of the total membership of the
body or some other standard as specified by state law.

V. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION.

1. All meetings are meetings of the body are conducted in the public; they are not meetings of the
public.

2. All meetings of the body are open to the public.

3. Meetings of the body are a limited public forum.

VLCT Model Rules of Procedure for Municipal Boards Page 6



4. Members of the public will be afforded a reasonable opportunity to express their opinions about
matters considered by the body, so long as order is maintained according to these rules.

5. Public comment is open to all members of the general public, not just residents of [municipality].

6. Atthe [beginning/end/conclusion/discussion] of each agenda item, but before any action is taken
by the public body at each meeting, there may be [number] minutes afforded for open public
comment. By [unanimous/two-thirds/majority] vote, the body may increase the time for open
public comment and its place on the agenda.

7. No member of the public may speak longer than [number] minutes without the consent of the
presiding officer.

8. Speakers will be taken on a first-come, first-served basis, though the presiding officer may suspend
this rule to protect against repetitive or irrelevant comments and to ensure that varied, especially
opposing viewpoints, are heard.

9. Speakers may be asked, but not compelled, to state their name and/or address.

10. Members of the public must be acknowledged by the presiding officer before speaking.
11. Members of the public must wait their turn to speak and may not interrupt others.

12. Public comment must be germane to an item on the agenda.

13. A member of the public can only speak more than once on the same agenda item, time permitting,
with the consent of the presiding officer and only after every other member of the public has been
given an opportunity to speak.

14. The balance of time not used by a speaker will expire and cannot be reserved or yielded to another.
15. Members of the public do not have the right to vote on meeting agenda items.

16. Public comment under “other business” is limited to the business of the body (i.e., the public
body’s governmental functions, including any matter over which the body has supervision, control,
jurisdiction, or advisory power).

17. Meetings may be recorded by any member of the public unless doing so constitutes an actual
disruption to the proceedings of the meeting. [OPTIONAL, ONLY AFTER CONSULTING WITH TOWN
ATTORNEY: Meetings may not be recorded by any member of the public.]

Vi

ORDER.
1. Order must be observed by all persons attending the meeting, whether in-person or electronically.

2. The presiding officer will preserve order in the meeting and regulate its proceedings by applying
these rules and by making determinations about all questions of order or procedure.

VLCT Model Rules of Procedure for Municipal Boards Page 7



10.

[OPTIONAL: No signs or posters are permitted inside the meeting room.]

All electronic devices used by members of the body, the public, and others present must be
silenced (i.e., turned off or put on "vibrate") during meetings.

All comments must be addressed to the presiding officer.

No person may disrupt, disturb, or otherwise impede {except for a point of order) the orderly
conduct of the meeting or interrupt any person while they're speaking.

The only people who may interrupt another from speaking are 1) a member of the body for a point
of order directed towards the presiding officer, or 2) the presiding officer themselves, to enforce a
rule.

Speakers must refrain from repetitious speech or speech that is irrelevant to the business of the
body.

Members of the body should be addressed by their official title (e.g., selectperson, commissioner,
committee member, etc.) followed by their last name. Members of the public should likewise be
addressed as either “the Speaker” or by some similar title of respect (e.g. Mr., Ms., Sir, Madam,
Mx., etc.).

Members of both the body and the public must obey all orders and rulings of the presiding officer.

The presiding officer should adhere to the following process to address any disruption to a meeting
and as needed to restore order, but may bypass any or all steps when they determine, in their sole
discretion, that deviation from the process is warranted:

a. Call the meeting to order and remind the member of the body or the public of the applicable
rules of procedure.

b. Declare a recess or table the issue under consideration.

c. Adjourn (i.e., postpone) and continue the meeting until a place and time certain or close
(end) the meeting.

d. Ask disorderly person(s) to leave the meeting room for the remainder of that meeting.

e. Request law enforcement assistance in removing a disorderly person(s) from the meeting,
when their conduct substantially impairs the effective conduct of the meeting, for the
remainder of that meeting.

VIl. MEETING MINUTES.

1.

Minutes must be taken of every meeting of the body.

VLCT Model Rules of Procedure for Municipal Boards Page 8



2. Minutes must give a "true indication of the business of the meeting," which may require
supplementing the following statutorily required elements: members present; active participants at
the meeting; motions, proposals, and resolutions made, offered, and considered and what
disposition is made of the same; the result of any votes taken; and a record of individual votes if a
roll call is taken.

3. Minutes must be available for inspection five calendar days after the meeting.

4. Minutes must be posted no later than five calendar days after the meeting to an official website, if
one exists, that is maintained or has been designated as the official website of the body.

5. [OPTIONAL: Minutes must be approved by a majority of the total membership of the body.}

6. [IF THE PUBLIC BODY APPROVES MINUTES, INSERT THE FOLLOWING: “Minutes can be amended by
concurrence of a majority of the total membership of the body.”]

VIII. EFFECTIVE DATE. This policy will become effective immediately upon its adoption by the [name of
municipal legislative body].

Adopted (Date):

Signatures:

VLCT Model Rules of Procedure for Municipal Boards Page 9



Diane Knight

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Hi Diane,

Chris Yurek <cyurek@marcvt.org>

Wednesday, June 5, 2024 2:03 PM

townhall@tds.net

tmanager@tds.net; bobjbrandt@gmail.com; sandersoncontracting@gmail.com; Meghan
Arpino; Allison Hopkins

Selectboard & Trustees Agenda Request

| am hoping to get on the agendas for the next Selectboard meeting and Village Trustees meeting to introduce the
Resilience Initiative for Vermont Empowerment and Recovery (RIVER) project to the Ludlow legislative bodies.

The basic premise of the RIVER project is to develop projects to mitigate impacts of future flood events in Ludlow (i.e.,
bridge/culvert upsizing, floodplain restoration, dam removal, etc.).

Is there room on the upcoming agendas?

g

Chris Yurek

Senior Planner

P.0. Box 320
38 Ascutney Park Road
Ascutney, Vermont 05030

Mount ASCUtney cyurek@marcvt.org (email)
Regional Commission  802.674.9201 x119 (office)

www.marcvt.org

This email is not a legal opinion and is part of the public domain.



